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FREQUENTLY ASKED QUESTIONS  
Regarding the Request for Proposals 

 
 

Project Title: Transitional Housing for Individuals Re-entering the Community after 
Incarceration 
 
 
Anticipated Grant Period: July 1, 2021- June 30, 2023 
 
Date RFP Issued: January 8, 2021   
 
Applicant Information Session: January 29, 2021  
 
Date Applications Due: March 12, 2021  
 

Single Point of Contact: Emily Higgins, Corrections Housing Administrator    
 
Phone: (802) 798-2302                         Email: Emily.Higgins@vermont.gov   
 

 
 
 
The below Questions and Answers were compiled based on communications with potential 
applicants between January 14, 2021 and February 5, 2021. They are posted along with the full 

RFP details on: http://www.vermontbusinessregistry.com/BidPreview.aspx?BidID=50937 

 

 

mailto:Emily.Higgins@vermont.gov
http://www.vermontbusinessregistry.com/BidPreview.aspx?BidID=50937
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Frequently Asked Questions and Answers 
 

 

Q1) Does this RFP include all current DOC Transitional Housing programs?  

 

A1) Yes, current DOC grantees should re-apply for funding for all existing programs. Through 

this process we are re-competing all existing awards, as well as inviting applications from new 

providers. 
 

 

Q2) If you have a current DOC grant for a Community Justice Center, or formerly had a 

Transitional Housing grant, are you considered a new applicant for this Transitional 

Housing RFP?  

 

A2) Yes, if you do not have a current housing grant through DOC, you are considered a new 

applicant for this RFP, and should fill out the questions labeled for “New Applicants.” 

Applicants may describe their past or current experience with DOC in the narrative.  
 

 

Q3) If a program does not allow high-risk sex offenders, are they still eligible to apply?  

 

A3) Yes. DOC has a strong preference for funding programs that can house sex offenders since 

they represent our most challenging population to house, but applicants are not disqualified if 

they are unable to. A description of any barriers should be included in the application narrative.  

 
 

Q4) In terms of demonstrating Programs Results for current grantees (Question C.5.1 in 

the application): what documentation is expected and for what time period?   

 

A4) Current grantees may provide a narrative summary (or attach a spreadsheet) of outcomes 

from the previous year or two. There are no set requirements beyond clear documentation of 

program impacts.  

 

Q5) How did DOC determine the proposed allocation of funding and beds by AHS District 

in the “funding available” section of the RFP (Section C, pg. 8)?  

 

A5) DOC staff conducted a detailed needs assessment including historical program capacity and 

utilization, caseload data and narrative input from local Probation & Parole offices, the list of 

those currently incarcerated due to lack of housing, allowances by district for the cost of living, 

and for the varying costs of different program models. Keep in mind that these proposed 

numbers are not set in stone; but meant to assist in the local planning process. 

 

Q6) Is there a required number of beds that a program should apply for?  

 

A6) No. Applicants should propose a set number of beds that would be designated for DOC 

clients, but there is no minimum or maximum. See Section C for the proposed range by district.  

Coordination with other local providers is encouraged.  
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Q7) How should budgets be presented in the application? A per diem cost for each bed, or 

overall operations and staffing costs?  

 

A7) Applicants should request the funding they need to operate a successful program. There are 

limited resources, so applications that demonstrate leverage and efficient use of funds will be 

more competitive. During the selection process, we may negotiate budget details, structure, and 

bed capacity with applicants.   
 
 

Q8) How do referrals to these programs work?  

 

A8) There is a formal referral process between the Correctional Facilities, the local Probation & 

Parole office, and the Transitional Housing Provider through DOC’s Offender Management 

System (OMS). Further detail can be found in the Transitional Housing Directive listed in 

Appendix A of the RFP. Any new grantees would be oriented and trained on this process.  

 

Q9) What client data is entered into the Offender Management System (OMS), how is 

confidentiality protected, and how is data accessed? 

 

A9) OMS is the system DOC uses to track and share client data. Clients sign a Release of 

Information to approve specific uses of this data. DOC staff enter information like criminal 

history details, affidavits, disciplinary history, etc. Community partners (individually authorized 

and trained users) can only access certain sections of OMS to accept or deny referrals, submit 

entry/exit details, upload housing plans, and enter case notes.  

 

Q10) Pre-COVID-19, DOC field staff were physically present in the community, could visit 

programs/clients, perform UA’s, etc. Does DOC expect this to resume in the future, or will 

the relationship be different due to changes as part of the Justice Reinvestment Act?  

 

A10) DOC’s field services protocol is re-evaluated weekly based on various conditions, 

including COVID-19. Based on State guidance (https://vem.vermont.gov/covid19) and internal 

DOC decisions, field staff roles will be adjusted as appropriate. The Justice Reinvestment Act, 

which took effect in January 2021, will result in some changes. Applicants can find more detail 

under the “background and need” section of the RFP. Historically, returns to incarceration from 

transitional housing programs have been common. Through increased collaboration with 

communities and furlough changes, DOC’s goal is to build a stronger bridge to housing stability 

for people leaving incarceration.   

 

Q11) Applicants are asked to describe provisions to prevent exiting residents to 

homelessness or prison due to program violations (application question C.2, Permanent 

Housing). Is it adequate to have a discharge policy for residents?  

 

A11) No. Through this RFP we are seeking creative community solutions to provide people re-

entering with options for recovery, relapse prevention, conflict resolution and positive 

interventions.   

 

 

https://vem.vermont.gov/covid19
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Q12) In terms of participation of those with lived experience, (Question C.8.1 in the 

application): should this include work with community partners like Working Fields, 

Recovery Coaching, etc.?  

 

A12) Yes, all methods that the program uses to incorporate the experience, skills, and insights of 

those with a personal history of criminal justice involvement should be described here.  

NOTE:  These grant funds cannot be used to directly pay for “Peer Recovery Coaching” services 

as this creates a conflict of interest. Peer coaches, if employed by a transitional housing program, 

would be required to share certain information with DOC to ensure safety.   

 

Q13) How do the required disclosure questions on the Cover Sheet of the application align 

with the goal of encouraging the participation of those with criminal justice involvement 

(application Question C.8)? Can someone with a criminal record serve on the board, for 

example? 

A13) Yes, DOC requires that applicants disclose any criminal justice history of people who will 

be directly involved in a funded agreement. However, we do not prohibit people with a criminal 

history from participating in the organization. Please describe in the narrative any policies or 

measures in place that protect public and/or organizational safety, as applicable.   

 

Q14) Regarding the budget narrative section (application Question C.11.a): Where should 

the narrative be written? On the Excel budget template provided or in the narrative 

application?   

 

A14) Please provide the narrative detail and basis for the budget line items in the narrative 

section of the application. The Excel template is for the numbers. For example, if a program lists 

a request for Contracts funding under the Operations section on the Excel template, the narrative 

should describe who the contracts are with, what services they include, number of hours & rate 

to be paid, and why a subcontract is needed for these services.  

 
 

Q15) Does DOC have a set rate for allowable administrative expenses? 

 

A15) No, DOC does not cap administrative expenses at a particular rate. However, in the budget 

narrative, please indicate the basis for the administrative expenses and how they are allocated 

across various funding sources and programs. A reasonable rate would be between 8-15% of the 

total DOC request. 

 

Q16) Please explain the Excel budget template. What do the categories and columns mean?  

 
A16) Column C (DOC request) is the amount of funding the applicant is requesting for their 

transitional housing program, Column D (Leveraged funds) is all other sources that support the 

program. The Total Program Budget column auto-calculates C + D. If the housing program is a 

subset of what the overall organization/municipality does, then the Total Program Budget should 

only include costs directly attributable to the housing program. In the budget narrative, please 

indicate what percentage the Program Budget is of the overall organizational budget.  
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The Direct Client Expenses section is meant to provide detail on program expenses that directly 

benefit the clients served. These costs may be incurred in a congregate setting or in scattered site 

apartments. If the program master leases apartments and pays the landlord directly for rent and 

security deposits, the narrative for this line should describe the average rental amount per unit, 

the tenant contribution to rent, and related details. If the program operates a congregate setting 

where staff have office space on site, and no rental assistance is paid out to clients, then rent paid 

by the program would instead be listed in the Occupancy section under Operations. As stated in 

the Instructions tab of the Excel template, applicants may modify the budget tool to indicate their 

program’s costs more clearly.  

 
 

Q17) Section C of the RFP, Funding Available, indicates that Medicaid funding is one of 

the sources. Are programs expected to bill Medicaid directly for services provided?  

 
A17) No. The Medicaid funding included in the current RFP is through the Global Commitment 

to Health 1115 Waiver that Vermont utilizes to “support a multi-disciplinary approach including 

the basic principles of public health, the fundamentals of effective administration of a Medicaid 

managed care delivery system, public-private partnership, and program flexibility.” More detail 

can be found in the Global Commitment Fact Sheet. Programs eligible to use these funds will be 

determined by DOC as part of the selection process, and Medicaid funds are managed internally 

by the DOC business office, based on program invoices.  

 

Q18) What is the timing and process for invoicing once a grant is awarded?  

 

A18) Payment provisions will be laid out in the grant agreement. Grantees may invoice 

quarterly, or more frequently if needed. DOC is able to advance funds to a certain extent, rather 

than pay only on a reimbursement basis. All requests after the initial advance must be submitted 

with a detailed financial report indicating how grant funds were expended, compared to the 

agreed-upon budget.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

https://www.medicaid.gov/Medicaid-CHIP-Program-Information/By-Topics/Waivers/1115/downloads/vt/vt-global-commitment-to-health-fs.pdf#:~:text=The Vermont Global Commitment to Health Medicaid section,care delivery system, public-private partnership, and program flexibility.

